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TO: Kent Studebaker, Mayor 
 Members of the City Council 
   
FROM: Anthony Hooper, Support Services Supervisor 
 Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract with LRS Architects for Architectural and Engineering Services for the 

not to exceed amount of $996,000 for the Operations Center Project 
 
DATE: July 14, 2015 
 
 
ACTION 
 

Move to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for the not to exceed amount of 
$996,000 with LRS Architects for architectural and engineering services for the Operations 
Center Project. 
 
INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 
 

On June 3, 2015, the City published a Request for Proposals for Architectural and Engineering 
Services based upon the qualification-based selection (QBS) process for the New Operations 
Center.  On July 1, the City received proposals from six architectural and engineering teams.   
The selection team evaluated proposals and selected three firms for an interview.   The 
selection team included the following members:  Public Works Director Guy Graham, 
Street/Surface Water Superintendent Jim Bateman, Management and Program Analyst Paul 
Ortiz, Day CPM representative Eric Eckfield (City’s Owner’s Representative), and myself.   After 
interviews and background checks, the scores were tallied and it was determined that LRS 
Architects was the initially-preferred submitter because LRS was the highest-ranked qualified 
firm pursuant to QBS process. 
 
As of the release of this report and pursuant to the QBS process, LRS Architects and City staff 
are working to complete the contract that is to be recommended to Council for approval.  The 
contract will be posted to the City’s website as an attachment to this staff report on Friday, July 
17, by the end of business day.   
 
LRS Architects designed the Hillsboro Public Works Administration and Maintenance Facility, 
which is estimated to be a $22.3 million project. The construction phase of the Hillsboro project 
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is underway and is projected to be completed in the fall of 2016.  Fortunately, the core LRS 
design team on the Hillsboro project has just become free and will be able to transition directly 
to working on Lake Oswego’s Operations Center Project.  The project manager for LRS 
Architects is Paul Boundy, who is also a Managing Principal for the firm.   The project architect 
is Michael Stanner, who has 17 years of architectural design experience.  Paul and Michael have 
worked together on more than 30 projects over the last 11 years. Lastly, LRS is a sizable firm 
with a total staff of 119 people and is headquartered in downtown Portland. 
 
In order to streamline the pre-construction process, the City required the proposing 
architectural and engineering firms to build a team that consists of companies that are able to 
provide a wide array of architectural and engineering services. LRS Architects’ project team 
includes the below firms: 
 

• AAI Engineering to provide structural engineering services 
• ESA Vigil-Agrimis to provide civil engineering and landscaping design 
• Interface Engineering to provide mechanical, plumbing, & electrical engineering services 
• HK Electrical to provide low voltage engineering services 
• Charles Fleisher to provide a peer review of the architectural designs 
• Architectural Cost Consultants to provide cost monitoring and controls 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

City staff and Day CPM chose to undergo a very aggressive schedule to procure an architectural 
and engineering team.  The selection team was able to review the six 30-page proposals in two 
business days.  Architectural firms were given four days to prepare for interviews.  Contract 
negotiations are expected to be completed in four days.  The aggressive timelines were 
accomplished because staff wanted to bring the contract to Council for approval in July and did 
not want to wait until after the next meeting in September to start design.   
 
The contract could still potentially be moved to September 1 for council review should the City 
recieve a protest from one of the other proposal submitters (there is a 7-day noticing period 
that will end on Tuesday, July 21 at 2:00 pm.)   
 
If authorization is granted to execute the contract at the July 21 Council Meeting, then staff 
anticipates bringing the Construction Manager/General Contractor (CM/GC) contract to Council 
on September 15.   The CM/GC selection process will be aggressive as well.   If all goes to plan, 
then in mid-Septemeber, the City will have the design team and the construction team onboard 
at the same time so as to start collaborating on the architectural and engineering plans.  If staff 
and Day CPM can maintain this pace, then construction will begin in the summer of 2016 and 
the project will be completed by the late summer of 2017.  
 
ALTERNATIVES & FISCAL IMPACT 
 

The budget for the scoped architectural and engineering services was $986,000. There is also an 
additional budget for $40,000 in supplemental design services.   The proposed contract with 
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LRS Architects of the not to exceed amount of $996,000 is within reach of the earmarked 
budget amount and is within the $6 million budgeted for FY 2015-16 in the Operations Building 
Capital Projects Fund.   
 
As a whole, the project is anticipated to be $13 million.  There is $10.1 million that is budgeted 
or projected to be budgeted over the next two years, which leaves a funding gap of $2.9 
million.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with LRS Architects for architectural and 
engineering services for the not to exceed amount of $996,000 for the Operations Center 
Project.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1.  Contract (to be attached separately on July 17) 
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